Monday, February 27, 2023 7:00 p.m. 36745 Marguette, Westland MI 48185

Minutes

The meeting was called to order by President David Cox at 7:00 p.m. The meeting began with a moment of silence in honor of Jacob Dawson-Escobedo a Franklin Middle School student, who was lost in a tragic accident.

220.23 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG – COX

Anthony Jackson, Cleah Peterson, and Blake Ratcliff Roosevelt-McGrath Elementary School, Mark Watson, Principal

221.23 ROLL CALL/ATTENDANCE - Hines

Board members present: LeWanna Abney-Mitchell, John F. Albrecht, David R. Cox, Melandie Hines, Kimberly R. May, Mark F. Neal, Frederick L. Weaver, Th.D.

222.23 RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS – Dignan

I. Spelling Bee Winner - Nevaeh Zeeto

Dr. Dignan announced that Nevaeh Zeeto is the district spelling bee winner. She is a student at Franklin Middle School in Ms. Hunt's 6th-grade class. Nevaeh was dedicated to after-school tutoring and coaching with Ms. Tackett in preparation for the spelling bee. She was a first-time contestant and competed against 17 other Wayne-Westland middle school students. Nevaeh won the district spelling bee by spelling the winning word blasphemous. Nevaeh will participate in the Scripps Regional (a WXYZ Channel 7 partner) Online Spelling Bee on March 15, 2023.

II. Wayne Memorial Student Representatives – Ava Williams and Carl Simmons

Dr. Dignan introduced Ava Williams and Carl Simmons from Wayne Memorial High School to provide an update on the student-sponsored events at the high school.

Ava Williams, a junior at Wayne Memorial, shared that Wayne Memorial and John Glenn both hosted a blood drive and together they raised enough blood to save over 200 lives.

Carl Simmons, a senior at Wayne Memorial, shared that Wayne Memorial and John Glenn High Schools participated in Rivalz Week. Rivialz Week is a

competition between the two high schools to raise money for the district's Family Resource Center; the high schools raised \$2000.00. Ava mentioned that to wrap up Rivalz Week, the two schools came together for a district pep rally, which was full of school spirit for both high schools. The last competition of the week was school pride day, including a basketball game between Wayne Memorial and John Glenn. KLLA has invited some of Wayne Memorial students and alumni to Madonna University to present on charities that have been created such as Rivalz Week.

Carl mentioned that Wayne Memorial recently attended State Counseling in Grand Rapids he was inspired by a speech by Chris Collins. Ava was excited to connect with students from all over Michigan.

III. Wisner Family Foundation – Hallman

Charles Hallman, Senior Executive Director of Special Education, introduced Arthur, Beth and Arthur IV Aigeltinger representatives from the Wisner Family Foundation. The Wisner Family Foundation provides grants to local organizations that focus on helping others. The foundation awarded Wayne-Westland a grant of \$5000.00 to support Special Olympics Unified Sports for students of all abilities to participate in sports. He thanked the Wisner Family Foundation and presented them with an appreciation award.

IV. School Bell Time Proposed Changes - Kundrick

Chad Kundrick, Director of Transportation, discussed a proposal for changing the bell times for the 23-24 school year. Transportation would like to balance the bell times to allow transportation to manage time and bus routes more efficiently. This change would occur in the 23/24 school year and the expected changes will be communicated to the community in the spring, summer and fall before the beginning of the school year.

V. Mid-Year Benchmark NWEA Data – Pawlukiewicz

Ms. Pawlukiewicz, Director of State and Federal Programs, shared a PowerPoint on benchmark assessments as required by the Michigan Department of Education. This presentation showed the data aligned with goals set in the 20-21 school year. All K-8 buildings use the NWEA, an approved benchmark assessment, which is computer adaptive. The goal for our students is that they will grow with each assessment. NWEA provides growth goal changes based on the students. Our goals for the middle and end of the year are for all students to meet 50% of their growth goals. The 22-23 winter data showed that 44% of the students met their reading goal and 41% met their math goal. The district is implementing interventions to help improve these percentages. The middle schools do an NWEA competition and the goals prove that the interventions work. Houghton Mifflin Harcourt (HMH) just acquired NWEA. Hopefully, there will be a nice marriage between NWEA and

Math and Read 180. HMH is meeting with and listening to staff and students about their likes and dislikes. We are seeing some positive gains with the students using Math and Read 180. Math 180 highlights showed that in just 3 months, students made 1-2 years of growth, a reduction in students who were far behind, and an addition in the students that are on level or above. The Read 180 highlights were similar and the reports will be posted on the district's website.

223.23 CITIZEN'S COMMENTS: AGENDA ITEMS – Cox

There were no public comments.

Kevin Coleman, the State Representative of the 25th Michigan House Representatives, shared that he deeply cares about the school districts and students. He complimented that Wayne-Westland always seeks innovative solutions to the district's challenges and the positive energy of the meeting. He is inspired by attending community and government meetings. It is his job in Lansing to fight for funding for schools. He would like to partner with the district, board, and community. Kevin Coleman's contact information - office: (517) 373-2275, email: kevincoleman@house.mi.gov, and cell phone: (734) 751-6321.

224.23 CONSENT AGENDA

- I. MINUTES
 - a. Regular Meeting Minutes January 23, 2023
- II. HUMAN RESOURCE ITEMS
 - Resignations: Instructional, Non-Instructional Personnel, Non-Affiliated Personnel

Courtney Kirkpatrick
Janine Owen
Ronald Pummill
Hannah Blake (Deceased)
Alicia Donahee
Bridget Copeland
Eric Gotts
Sharon Henley
Brenda Houghtaling
Michelle Mikulec
Joyce Morrison
Lynda Napier
Christopher O'Donnell
Tajuan Tait

b. Placements: Instructional, Non-Instructional, Non-Affiliated Personnel

Nicole Cano-Michael

Erika Ivey

Jamie Koch

Dhamahi Scales

Nader Bader

Kaylee Bradley

Veronica Bonner

James Bryant

Alicia Donahee

Hanna Eickholdt

Noha Eladly

Alisha Gregory

Cera Koch

Jayson Macek

Ashley McKenzie

Tye Moore

Joyce Morrison

Sandra Nichols-Felan

Sarah Niemic

Katherine Pruden

Amber Rains

Mirela Rife

Heather Robinson

Edith Schorsch

Ena Schwartz

Margaret Smith

Jamiya Stone

Madison Tenant

Kassandra Yates

Carol Alexander

Ashley Bersano

Jacob Brozek

Rhonda Chavis

Joseph Copland, Jr.

Rachel Davis

Savannah Dobreff

Lisa Gilbert

Alexandra Grim

Mary Hilobuk

Maryann Mullinax

Kyler Owenby

Julia Roberts

Francesco Ruffini

Andrea Santiago-Lagunas

Taylor Socola

Don Stoxstill Katelyn Vincent Jeffrey Volk Michael White Thomas Wolf

III. BUSINESS & FINANCE ITEMS

- a. Payment of Invoices (under separate cover)
- b. Investment Report
- c. Contract for John Glenn High School Liaison Officer
- IV. HEAD START MONTHLY REPORT (under separate cover)

V. DONATIONS

The following donation was made to the Wayne-Westland Community Schools Robotics Team:

a. Wayne Ford Civic League – Vic Barra: Monetary donation

The following donation was made to Stevenson Middle School for the No Place for Hate Poster winner rewards:

a. Angelle Allen: Monetary donation

The following donation was made to John Glenn High Schools Basketball Team:

a. Octane - Tarik Haygood: Basketball shoes

Resolved, that the board approve the consent agenda as presented. Motion by J. Albrecht, support by F. Weaver.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYES: 7 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0

MOTION PASSED

225.23 BOARD OF EDUCATION COMMITTEE REPORT - Cox

I. Finance Committee Report – May

Ms. May shared the following comments from a prepared statement: The Finance Committee met on February 9, 2023, at 4:30 pm via Zoom.

Mr. Spisak shared information regarding the 2018 Bond project budget. Due to inflation and labor shortages, we are experiencing an increase in bids. Therefore, he requested that work on the Administration Building, Transportation and Maintenance remodels until all K-12 buildings have been remodeled.

Mr. Besek explained the need and desire for the School Resource Officer partnership with the Westland Police Department.

Mrs. Nathan presented the Breakfast of Champions proposal.

Mr. Wenzel shared a proposal to purchase software to provide cyber security that will prevent phishing scams on the District email systems.

Mrs. Cleaves described both the Fire and Law Enforcement Academies coming to William D. Ford.

Mrs. Cleaves updated the committee on proposed improvements to the enrollment policy for SPARKEY tuition-based preschool.

Mrs. Cleaves also presented the investment report and check register.

Mrs. Cleaves shared comments on behalf of Dr. Dignan and upcoming District events.

The meeting was adjourned at 4:51 pm. The next Finance Committee meeting will be held on March 9, 2023 at 4:30 pm.

226.23 REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF BUSINESS SERVICE & FINANCE – Cleaves

I. Recommendation to Purchase Avanan Harmony Anti-Phishing Protection Licensing

Resolved, that the board approve Business Service & Finance Item I. as presented. Motion by M. Hines support by K. May.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYES: 7
NAYS: 0
ABSTAIN: 0
ABSENT: 0

MOTION PASSED

227.23 SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT/COMMENTS - Dignan

Dr. Dignan thanked the Roosevelt-McGrath students for leading the pledge and all presenters. He congratulated Nevaeh Zeeto on winning the spelling bee. He asked that everyone keep the Dawson-Escobedo family in their thoughts.

228.23 CITIZEN'S COMMENTS: NON-AGENDA ITEMS (GENERAL) - Cox

There were no public comments.

229.23 REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATIONS, BOARD OF EDUCATION – Cox

L. Abney-Mitchell mentioned that she has a background in behavioral health with students and families. She shared that being a part of the school board is an honor and she truly enjoys the students being involved in the meetings.

K. May thanked pledge students, Wayne Memorial High School representatives and congratulated the spelling bee winner. She was grateful for her opportunities to attend conferences to learn about the need for parents and school board members to have a strong voice, the differences between social-emotional and mental health and that education is one of the three priorities of the Speaker of the House McCarthy. She loves the great things happening in the district but worries about the financial shock that will be presented in the future. Because ESSER funds will not be around to continue the funding for programs and what will be cut or how the programs will continue to be funded. She mentioned that the district would benefit from a student achievement committee.

M. Hines thanked everyone for coming, Kevin Coleman for stopping by and the Wisner Family Foundation for the \$5000 grant. She was impressed by the NWEA data. She agrees with Ms. May that the district needs a student achievement committee. She shared that there is a That Girl/Detroit Pistons Motor City Community fundraiser coming up on March 27, 2023 at Little Caesars Arena - the information can be found at iam-thatgirl.com and that she has been chosen to receive a That Girl award.

M. Neal had no comment.

- F. Weaver congratulated Nevaeh Zeeto on winning the spelling bee and thanked Ms. Pawlukiewicz for her presentation. He mentioned that the teachers truly love our students and that there is love and appreciation in our district. He shared that we have interventions and mental health pieces in place in our district. He wants to see how the district plans to move the other 50% of the students of the district forward in benchmark assessments
- J. Albrecht thanked the pledge students, congratulated the spelling bee winner and complimented all presentations. The most meaningful thing for him is how much everyone cares about all of the students and that was expressed through the presentations.
- D. Cox commented that the voters in this district are geniuses. They have chosen great candidates to serve on the board. He expressed that they have a tremendous responsibility to fulfill as board members.

230.23 ADJOURNMENT

Resolved, that the board adjourn the meeting at 8:02 pm. Motion by M. Hines, supported by F. Weaver.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYES: 0
NAYS: 0
ABSTAIN: 0
ABSENT: 0

MOTION PASSED

Melandie Hines Board of Education Secretary Wayne-Westland Community Schools

Monday, February 27, 2023 7:00 p.m. 36745 Marquette, Westland MI 48185

Minutes

The meeting was called to order by President David Cox at 7:00 p.m. The meeting began with a moment of silence in honor of Jacob Dawson-Escobedo a Franklin Middle School student, who was lost in a tragic accident.

220.23 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG - COX

Anthony Jackson, Cleah Peterson, and Blake Ratcliff Roosevelt-McGrath Elementary School, Mark Watson, Principal

221,23 ROLL CALL/ATTENDANCE - Hines

Board members present: LeWanna Abney-Mitchell, John F. Albrecht, David R. Cox, Melandie Hines, Kimberly R. May, Mark F. Neal, Frederick L. Weaver, Th.D.

222.23 RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS - Dignan

I. Spelling Bee Winner - Nevaeh Zeeto

Dr. Dignan announced that Nevaeh Zeeto is the district spelling bee winner. She is a student at Franklin Middle School in Ms. Hunt's 6th-grade class. Nevaeh was dedicated to after-school tutoring and coaching with Ms. Tackett in preparation for the spelling bee. She was a first-time contestant and competed against 17 other Wayne-Westland middle school students. Nevaeh won the district spelling bee by spelling the winning word blasphemous. Nevaeh will participate in the Scripps Regional (a WXYZ Channel 7 partner) Online Spelling Bee on March 15, 2023.

II. Wayne Memorial Student Representatives – Ava Williams and Carl Simmons

Dr. Dignan introduced Ava Williams and Carl Simmons from Wayne Memorial High School to provide an update on the student-sponsored events at the high school.

Ava Williams, a junior at Wayne Memorial, shared that Wayne Memorial and John Glenn both hosted a blood drive and together they raised enough blood to save over 200 lives.

Carl Simmons, a senior at Wayne Memorial, shared that Wayne Memorial and John Glenn High Schools participated in Rivalz Week. Rivialz Week is a

competition between the two high schools to raise money for the district's Family Resource Center; the high schools raised \$2000.00. Ava mentioned that to wrap up Rivalz Week, the two schools came together for a district pep rally, which was full of school spirit for both high schools. The last competition of the week was school pride day, including a basketball game between Wayne Memorial and John Glenn. KLLA has invited some of Wayne Memorial students and alumni to Madonna University to present on charities that have been created such as Rivalz Week.

Carl mentioned that Wayne Memorial recently attended State Counseling in Grand Rapids he was inspired by a speech by Chris Collins. Ava was excited to connect with students from all over Michigan.

III. Wisner Family Foundation – Hallman

Charles Hallman, Senior Executive Director of Special Education, introduced Arthur, Beth and Arthur IV Aigeltinger representatives from the Wisner Family Foundation. The Wisner Family Foundation provides grants to local organizations that focus on helping others. The foundation awarded Wayne-Westland a grant of \$5000.00 to support Special Olympics Unified Sports for students of all abilities to participate in sports. He thanked the Wisner Family Foundation and presented them with an appreciation award.

IV. School Bell Time Proposed Changes - Kundrick

Chad Kundrick, Director of Transportation, discussed a proposal for changing the bell times for the 23-24 school year. Transportation would like to balance the bell times to allow transportation to manage time and bus routes more efficiently. This change would occur in the 23/24 school year and the expected changes will be communicated to the community in the spring, summer and fall before the beginning of the school year.

V. Mid-Year Benchmark NWEA Data – Pawlukiewicz

Ms. Pawlukiewicz, Director of State and Federal Programs, shared a PowerPoint on benchmark assessments as required by the Michigan Department of Education. This presentation showed the data aligned with goals set in the 20-21 school year. All K-8 buildings use the NWEA, an approved benchmark assessment, which is computer adaptive. The goal for our students is that they will grow with each assessment. NWEA provides growth goal changes based on the students. Our goals for the middle and end of the year are for all students to meet 50% of their growth goals. The 22-23 winter data showed that 44% of the students met their reading goal and 41% met their math goal. The district is implementing interventions to help improve these percentages. The middle schools do an NWEA competition and the goals prove that the interventions work. Houghton Mifflin Harcourt (HMH) just acquired NWEA. Hopefully, there will be a nice marriage between NWEA and

Math and Read 180. HMH is meeting with and listening to staff and students about their likes and dislikes. We are seeing some positive gains with the students using Math and Read 180. Math 180 highlights showed that in just 3 months, students made 1-2 years of growth, a reduction in students who were far behind, and an addition in the students that are on level or above. The Read 180 highlights were similar and the reports will be posted on the district's website.

223.23 CITIZEN'S COMMENTS: AGENDA ITEMS - Cox

There were no public comments.

Kevin Coleman, the State Representative of the 25th Michigan House Representatives, shared that he deeply cares about the school districts and students. He complimented that Wayne-Westland always seeks innovative solutions to the district's challenges and the positive energy of the meeting. He is inspired by attending community and government meetings. It is his job in Lansing to fight for funding for schools. He would like to partner with the district, board, and community. Kevin Coleman's contact information - office: (517) 373-2275, email: kevincoleman@house.mi.gov, and cell phone: (734) 751-6321.

224.23 CONSENT AGENDA

- I. MINUTES
 - a. Regular Meeting Minutes January 23, 2023
- II. HUMAN RESOURCE ITEMS
 - a. Resignations: Instructional, Non-Instructional Personnel, Non-Affiliated Personnel

Courtney Kirkpatrick
Janine Owen
Ronald Pummill
Hannah Blake (Deceased)
Alicia Donahee
Bridget Copeland
Eric Gotts
Sharon Henley
Brenda Houghtaling
Michelle Mikulec
Joyce Morrison
Lynda Napier
Christopher O'Donnell
Tajuan Tait

b. Placements: Instructional, Non-Instructional, Non-Affiliated Personnel

Nicole Cano-Michael

Erika Ivey

Jamie Koch

Dhamahi Scales

Nader Bader

Kaylee Bradley

Veronica Bonner

James Bryant

Alicia Donahee

Hanna Eickholdt

Noha Eladly

Alisha Gregory

Cera Koch

Jayson Macek

Ashley McKenzie

Tye Moore

Joyce Morrison

Sandra Nichols-Felan

Sarah Niemic

Katherine Pruden

Amber Rains

Mirela Rife

Heather Robinson

Edith Schorsch

Ena Schwartz

Margaret Smith

Jamiya Stone

Madison Tenant

Kassandra Yates

Carol Alexander

Ashley Bersano

Jacob Brozek

Rhonda Chavis

Joseph Copland, Jr.

Rachel Davis

Savannah Dobreff

Lisa Gilbert

Alexandra Grim

Mary Hilobuk

Maryann Mullinax

Kyler Owenby

Julia Roberts

Francesco Ruffini

Andrea Santiago-Lagunas

Taylor Socola

Don Stoxstill Katelyn Vincent Jeffrey Volk Michael White Thomas Wolf

III. BUSINESS & FINANCE ITEMS

- a. Payment of Invoices (under separate cover)
- b. Investment Report
- c. Contract for John Glenn High School Liaison Officer
- IV. HEAD START MONTHLY REPORT (under separate cover)

V. DONATIONS

The following donation was made to the Wayne-Westland Community Schools Robotics Team:

a. Wayne Ford Civic League - Vic Barra: Monetary donation

The following donation was made to Stevenson Middle School for the No Place for Hate Poster winner rewards:

a. Angelle Allen: Monetary donation

The following donation was made to John Glenn High Schools Basketball Team:

a. Octane - Tarik Haygood: Basketball shoes

Resolved, that the board approve the consent agenda as presented. Motion by J. Albrecht, support by F. Weaver.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYES: 7 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0

MOTION PASSED

225.23 BOARD OF EDUCATION COMMITTEE REPORT – Cox

Finance Committee Report – May

Ms. May shared the following comments from a prepared statement: The Finance Committee met on February 9, 2023, at 4:30 pm via Zoom.

Mr. Spisak shared information regarding the 2018 Bond project budget. Due to inflation and labor shortages, we are experiencing an increase in bids. Therefore, he requested that work on the Administration Building, Transportation and Maintenance remodels until all K-12 buildings have been remodeled.

Mr. Besek explained the need and desire for the School Resource Officer partnership with the Westland Police Department.

Mrs. Nathan presented the Breakfast of Champions proposal.

Mr. Wenzel shared a proposal to purchase software to provide cyber security that will prevent phishing scams on the District email systems.

Mrs. Cleaves described both the Fire and Law Enforcement Academies coming to William D. Ford.

Mrs. Cleaves updated the committee on proposed improvements to the enrollment policy for SPARKEY tuition-based preschool.

Mrs. Cleaves also presented the investment report and check register.

Mrs. Cleaves shared comments on behalf of Dr. Dignan and upcoming District events.

The meeting was adjourned at 4:51 pm. The next Finance Committee meeting will be held on March 9, 2023 at 4:30 pm.

226.23 REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF BUSINESS SERVICE & FINANCE - Cleaves

I. Recommendation to Purchase Avanan Harmony Anti-Phishing Protection Licensing

Resolved, that the board approve Business Service & Finance Item I. as presented. Motion by M. Hines support by K. May.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYES: 7
NAYS: 0
ABSTAIN: 0
ABSENT: 0

MOTION PASSED

227.23 SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT/COMMENTS – Dignan

Dr. Dignan thanked the Roosevelt-McGrath students for leading the pledge and all presenters. He congratulated Nevaeh Zeeto on winning the spelling bee. He asked that everyone keep the Dawson-Escobedo family in their thoughts.

228.23 CITIZEN'S COMMENTS: NON-AGENDA ITEMS (GENERAL) - Cox

There were no public comments.

229.23 REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATIONS, BOARD OF EDUCATION - Cox

L. Abney-Mitchell mentioned that she has a background in behavioral health with students and families. She shared that being a part of the school board is an honor and she truly enjoys the students being involved in the meetings.

K. May thanked pledge students, Wayne Memorial High School representatives and congratulated the spelling bee winner. She was grateful for her opportunities to attend conferences to learn about the need for parents and school board members to have a strong voice, the differences between social-emotional and mental health and that education is one of the three priorities of the Speaker of the House McCarthy. She loves the great things happening in the district but worries about the financial shock that will be presented in the future. Because ESSER funds will not be around to continue the funding for programs and what will be cut or how the programs will continue to be funded. She mentioned that the district would benefit from a student achievement committee.

M. Hines thanked everyone for coming, Kevin Coleman for stopping by and the Wisner Family Foundation for the \$5000 grant. She was impressed by the NWEA data. She agrees with Ms. May that the district needs a student achievement committee. She shared that there is a That Girl/Detroit Pistons Motor City Community fundraiser coming up on March 27, 2023 at Little Caesars Arena - the information can be found at iam-thatgirl.com and that she has been chosen to receive a That Girl award.

M. Neal had no comment.

- F. Weaver congratulated Nevaeh Zeeto on winning the spelling bee and thanked Ms. Pawlukiewicz for her presentation. He mentioned that the teachers truly love our students and that there is love and appreciation in our district. He shared that we have interventions and mental health pieces in place in our district. He wants to see how the district plans to move the other 50% of the students of the district forward in benchmark assessments
- J. Albrecht thanked the pledge students, congratulated the spelling bee winner and complimented all presentations. The most meaningful thing for him is how much everyone cares about all of the students and that was expressed through the presentations.
- D. Cox commented that the voters in this district are geniuses. They have chosen great candidates to serve on the board. He expressed that they have a tremendous responsibility to fulfill as board members.

230.23 ADJOURNMENT

Resolved, that the board adjourn the meeting at 8:02 pm. Motion by M. Hines, supported by F. Weaver.

ROLL CALL VOTE

AYES: 0
NAYS: 0
ABSTAIN: 0
ABSENT: 0

MOTION PASSED

Melandie Hines

Board of Education Secretary

Wayne-Westland Community Schools